

Aortic remodelling hybrid stent insertion during surgical repair of an acute type A aortic dissection

Interventional procedures guidance Published: 3 August 2022

www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ipg733

Your responsibility

This guidance represents the view of NICE, arrived at after careful consideration of the evidence available. When exercising their judgement, healthcare professionals are expected to take this guidance fully into account, and specifically any special arrangements relating to the introduction of new interventional procedures. The guidance does not override the individual responsibility of healthcare professionals to make decisions appropriate to the circumstances of the individual patient, in consultation with the patient and/or guardian or carer.

All problems (adverse events) related to a medicine or medical device used for treatment or in a procedure should be reported to the Medicines and Healthcare products Regulatory Agency using the <u>Yellow Card Scheme</u>. Commissioners and/or providers have a responsibility to implement the guidance, in their local context, in light of their duties to have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, advance equality of opportunity, and foster good relations. Nothing in this guidance should be interpreted in a way that would be inconsistent with compliance with those duties. Providers should ensure that governance structures are in place to review, authorise and monitor the introduction of new devices and procedures.

Commissioners and providers have a responsibility to promote an environmentally sustainable health and care system and should assess and reduce the environmental impact of implementing NICE recommendations wherever possible.

Recommendations 1

- Evidence on the safety and efficacy of aortic remodelling hybrid stent 1.1 insertion during surgical repair of an acute type A aortic dissection is limited in quantity and quality. Therefore, this procedure should only be used with special arrangements for clinical governance, consent, and audit or research. Find out what special arrangements mean on the NICE interventional procedures guidance page.
- Clinicians wanting to do aortic remodelling hybrid stent insertion during 1.2 surgical repair of an acute type A aortic dissection should:
 - Inform the clinical governance leads in their healthcare organisation.
 - If possible, give patients (and their families and carers as appropriate) clear written information to support shared decision making, including NICE's information for the public.
 - If possible, ensure that patients (and their families and carers as appropriate) understand the procedure's safety and efficacy, and any uncertainties about these.
 - Enter details about all patients having aortic remodelling hybrid stent insertion during surgical repair of an acute type A aortic dissection into the NICOR Adult Cardiac Surgery Audit. Contact nicor.auditenguiries@nhs.net for details.
 - Discuss the outcomes of the procedure during their annual appraisal to reflect, learn and improve.

- 1.3 Healthcare organisations should:
 - Ensure systems are in place that support clinicians to collect and report data on outcomes and safety for every patient having this procedure.
 - Regularly review data on outcomes and safety for this procedure.
- 1.4 This procedure should only be done in specialised centres by surgeons experienced in aortic surgery and with special training in this procedure.
- 1.5 Further research could include randomised controlled trials or analysis of registry data. It should include details of patient selection and report 30-day mortality, quality of life, and long-term outcomes including aortic remodelling and complications.

2 The condition, current treatments and procedure

The condition

- An aortic dissection is a serious condition in which a tear occurs in the 2.1 inner layer of the aorta. Blood flows through the tear and into the wall of the aorta. This forces the inner and middle layers of the aorta to split apart (dissect), creating 2 passages (a true lumen and a false lumen). As more blood flows into the new false lumen the dissection extends along the aorta. This can lead to aortic rupture or decreased blood flow (ischaemia or malperfusion) to organs.
- 2.2 Aortic dissections are classified into 2 types, depending on which part of the aorta is affected. Type A dissection involves a tear in the ascending part of the aorta. The tear may also occur in the aortic arch, which may extend into the abdomen or back into the ascending aorta. Type B dissection involves a tear in the aorta beyond the arch, usually in the descending thoracic aorta. Dissections can be acute or chronic.

Aortic remodelling hybrid stent insertion during surgical repair of an acute type A aortic dissection (IPG733)

Current treatments

2.3 Treatments for aortic dissection include medicines (to control hypertension) and surgery (to repair the aorta, and possible replacement of the aortic valve). Type of treatment depends on the chronicity, site location, and whether there are complicating features. Acute type A aortic dissection is life threatening and needs immediate surgery. The goals of surgical repair are to seal the false lumen and resolve malperfusion.

The procedure

- 2.4 Insertion of aortic remodelling hybrid stent is incorporated into open hemiarch repair for an acute type A aortic dissection, under general anaesthesia. The device is a self-expanding bare-metal stent with a short felt sewing cuff end. It aims to resolve malperfusion and promote positive remodelling of the aorta.
- 2.5 During the hemiarch aortic reconstruction, once circulatory arrest is established, the ascending aorta is transected and resected in the standard manner. A hybrid stent is then inserted until the entire device is inside the true lumen. This is usually done under direct vision, although it can be implanted using a guidewire. The cuff end of the stent is placed level with the edge of the transected aorta and attached with interrupted sutures. The uncovered portion of the stent expands along the aortic arch into the descending aorta. The remainder of the surgical hemiarch aortic reconstruction is completed in the usual way.

3 Committee considerations

The evidence

3.1 NICE did a rapid review of the published literature on the efficacy and safety of this procedure. This comprised a comprehensive literature search and detailed review of the evidence from 3 sources, which was discussed by the committee. The evidence included 1 single-arm trial, 1 retrospective case series and 1 additional paper, which reported the outcomes of the malperfusion subgroups from the clinical trial. It is presented in the <u>summary of key evidence section in the interventional procedures overview</u>.

- 3.2 The professional experts and the committee considered the key efficacy outcomes to be: reduction in false lumen diameter, improvement in aortic remodelling, resolution of organ malperfusion, survival and quality of life.
- 3.3 The professional experts and the committee considered the key safety outcomes to be: bleeding, extension of further dissection, infection and death.
- 3.4 One patient organisation submission was received and discussed by the committee. Patient commentary was sought but none was received.

Committee comments

- 3.5 The committee was informed that acute type A aortic dissection is a rare condition with a high mortality, and this procedure has a role in managing type A dissections that extend into the aortic arch, supra-aortic vessels and descending aorta.
- 3.6 The committee noted that many approaches are available to manage acute type A aortic dissection and there is no single defined standard of care.

ISBN: 978-1-4731-4652-5

Endorsing organisation

This guidance has been endorsed by <u>Healthcare Improvement Scotland</u>.

Accreditation

